
       Winnebago County Board 
       Regular Adjourned Meeting 
       Thursday, September 7, 2017 
 

 

A M E N D E D   A G E N D A 
 
 
Call to Order ------------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
  
Agenda Changes--------------------------------------CHAIRMAN FRANK HANEY 
 
Under Proclamations 
 
Please Remove: 
 

“U.S. Constitution Week” – Inis F. Bloomster, Rockford Chapter 
National Daughters of the American Revolution (Rescheduled) 
 

Under Public Participation 
 
Please Add: 
 
Rev. Derrick Shelby  -  Voting    - PRO 
Mayor Thomas McNamara - Barber-Colman Project  - PRO 
Patrick Murphy   - Barber-Colman Project  - PRO 
Mike Schablaske   - Barber-Colman Project  - PRO 
John Eckburg   - Barber-Colman Project  - PRO 
Bruce Roberts   -  Public Safety Issues in   - PRO  

The County 
Gary W. Anderson  - Barber-Colman Project  - PRO 
Susan Lewandowski  - Funding Barber-Colman  - PRO 
      Project 
Kevin McCarthy   - Proposed Cut to Sheriff’s - CON 
      Budget - 2018 
 
Under Economic Development Committee 
 
Please Add: 
 
 1. Barber-Colman Overview 



Roll Call-----------------------------------COUNTY CLERK, MARGIE MULLINS 
 
 
Invocation -------------------------------------------------------------------------D. REDD 
                
 

Awards, Presentations and/or Proclamations and Public 
Participation 

 
 
Awards -    None 
 
Presentations   -    None 
 
Proclamations  -    None 

 
Public Participation      -     Rev. Derrick Shelby   - Voting  - PRO 

- Mayor Thomas McNamara-  Barber- Colman  
Project     PRO 

- Patrick Murphy  -  Barber- Colman 
Project     PRO 

- Mike Schablaske  - Barber-Colman 
Project     PRO 

- John Eckburg   - Barber-Colman 
Project     PRO 

- Bruce Roberts   - Public Safety 
Issues in The County   PRO 

- Gary W. Anderson  - Barber-Colman 
Project     PRO 

- Susan Lewandowski  - PRO 
Funding Barber-Colman - PRO 
Project 

- Kevin McCarthy  -  Proposed Cut to 
Sheriff’s Budget – 2018 - CON 

 
Minutes 
 
“May I Please Have a Motion to Approve the Minutes from August 10, 2017 
Meeting and to Layover the Minutes from the August 24, 2017 Meeting. 
 
Announcements & Communications-------------------MARGIE MULLINS 
 



“The Items Listed Below Were Received as Correspondence” 
Chairman Haney To Be “PLACED ON FILE”. 
 
1. County Clerk Mullins received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory 

Commission the following: 
 
A. Byron Station Acknowledgment of Disputed Violation of NRC Inspection 

Report 05000454/2017009; 05000455/2017009  (Received 8-25-17) 
 
B. Federal Register / Vol. 82, No. 166 / Tuesday, August 29, 2017  (Received     

8-31-17) 
 
C. Updated Inspection Plan for Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 (Report 

05000454/2017004 and 0455/2017005)  (Received 8-31-17) 
 
D. Letter responding to the petition dated January 24, 2017, as supplemented by 

e-mails dated February 15, March 6, June 16, June 27, June 30, and July 5, 
2017.  (Received 8-31-17) 

 
E. Federal Register / Vol. 82, No. 170 / Tuesday, September 5, 2017 / Notices  

(Received 9-5-17) 
 
F. Braidwood Station, Units 1 and 2; Byron Station, Unit Nos. 1 and 2; Calvert 

Cliffs Nuclear Power Plant, Units 1 and 2; Clinton Power Station, Unit No. 1; 
Dresden Nuclear Power Station, Units 2 and 3; LaSalle County Station, Units 
1 and 2;Limerick Generating Station, Units 1 and 2; Nine Mile Point Nuclear 
Station, Units 1 and 2; Peach Bottom Atomic Power Station, Units 2 and 3; 
Quad Cities Nuclear Power Station, Units 1 and 2; R.E. Ginna Nuclear 
Power Plant; and Three Mile Island Nuclear Station, Unit 1 – Issuance of 
Amendments to Adopt TSTF-529, “Clarify Use and Application Rules: (CAC 
Nos. MF9470-MF9490)  (Received 9-7-17) 

 
2. County Clerk Mullins received from Rockford BMX a letter thanking the County 

for their financial support given to their organization. 
 
3. County Clerk Mullins received from the Illinois Commerce Commission a letter 

regarding a complaint associated with Future Now Energy LLC. 
 
4. County Clerk Mullins received from ComEd a letter informing the County that 

during the months of October, November and December, 2017, ComEd will begin 
performing regularly scheduled Transmission Corridor vegetation management 
activities within our area. 

 
5. County Clerk Mullins received from Nancy L. McPherson, Winnebago County 

Recorder the Monthly Report for August, 2017. 
 
 

GO TO REGULAR AGENDA 



Page | 1  
 

REVISED 
09-07-17 

WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD  
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street ~ Rockford IL 61101 
County Board Room ~ 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, September 7, 2017 

6:00 p.m. 
 

Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  
• Awards – None 
• Presentations – None 
• Proclamations – None (Rescheduled:  U.S. Constitution Week Proclamation) 

 
Board Member Correspondence 
 
Chairman’s Report 

• Volunteer Barb Martin, Chairman’s Service Excellence Award 
 
Consent Agenda 

• Leaves of Absence 
• Raffle Report  

 
Standing Committee Reports 
 

1. Finance Committee – Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Kurt Ditzler Versus Winnebago County 
C. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled David Ellis Versus Winnebago County 
D. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Frank Fasula Versus Winnebago County 
E. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Lori Stutsman Versus Winnebago County 
 

2. Zoning Committee – Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 
A. Planning and/or Zoning Requests (none) 
B. Committee Report (See attached) 

 



Page | 2  
 

3. Economic Development Committee – Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report   

1. Barber Colman Overview 
B. Resolution to Authorize a Commitment to an Intergovernmental Agreement with the 

City of Rockford in Support of the Barber Colman Village Redevelopment Project  
 

4. Operations & Administrative Committee – Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Establishing the Date, Time, and Location of Each Meeting of the 

Winnebago County Board 
C. Resolution to Renew the Agreement for Chiropractic Services 
 

5. Public Works Committee – Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 
A. Committee Report 
B. (17-044) Resolution Authorizing a Change Order for the Riverside and Forest Hills Joint 

Repair (Section 17-00000-01-GM) Change Order #1 
Cost:  $11,282.23 deduction   C.B. District:  17 & 20 

C. (17-045) Resolution Awarding Bids for Wheel End Loader 
Cost:  $222,000     C.B. District:  County Wide 

D. (17-046) Resolution for the Award of Bid for Roscoe Road Bridge Over the Rock River 
Slope Wall Repairs (Section 17-00647-00-BR)    
Cost:  $39,595.25     C.B. District:  3 

 
6. Public Safety Committee – Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 

A. Committee Report 
B. Resolution Authorizing the Winnebago County Sheriff to Extend the Contract for 

Towing of Impounds and County Vehicles 
C. Resolution Authorizing Execution of a Termination of an Intergovernmental Agreement 

among the County of Winnebago, the Illinois Department of Human Services and the 
Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority for Operation of The Illinois Center of 
Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice 

D. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Intergovernmental Agreement Setting Forth the 
Responsibilities of the Parties for Operation of the Illinois Center of Excellence for 
Behavioral Health and Justice 

E. Resolution Authorizing Execution of Intergovernmental Agreement to Continue the 
Operation of The Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice 

 
Unfinished Business 
 
New Business 
 
 
Adjournment    

Next Meeting: Thursday, September 28, 2017 



 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



Barb Martin
I, Frank Haney, Chairman of the Winnebago County Board hereby recognize 
Barb Martin for outstanding service to the residents of Winnebago County, 
Illinois. This award recognizes her passion for excellence and a spirit of serving 
others. This award is not given because of one single action but rather for ongoing, 
meritorious service. Barb Martin is recognized as an example of the very best 
values of the Winnebago County community. 

presented to

______________________
Winnebago County Board Chairman Frank Haney

Frank Haney



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 







 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 24, 2017 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM AGAINST 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED  

KURT DITZLER VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Kurt Ditzler for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Winnebago Sheriff’s Department; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $27,668.30 for a Workers Compensation 
case and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the interest 
of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the proposed 
settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Kurt Ditzler 
verses County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Kurt Ditzler while in the 
employment of the Winnebago County Sheriff’s Department by payment of the amount of 
$27,668.30 for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 

 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted,                                                                  
 
 



2 
 

  
                                                                                                                                                                  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
   

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this    24th   day of        August    2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 24, 2017 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM AGAINST 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED  

DAVID ELLIS VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by David Ellis for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the County 
of Winnebago; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $13,728.69 for a Workers Compensation 
case and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the interest 
of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the proposed 
settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled David Ellis 
verses County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by David Ellis while in the 
employment of the County of Winnebago by payment of the amount of $13,728.69 for 
permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 

 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted,                                                                  
 
 



2 
 

  
                                                                                                                                                                  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
   

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this    24th   day of        August    2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 24, 2017 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM AGAINST 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED  

FRANK FASULA JR. VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Frank Fasula, Jr. for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
County of Winnebago; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $137,834.79 for a Workers Compensation 
case and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the interest 
of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the proposed 
settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Frank Fasula 
Jr. verses County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Frank Fasula Jr. while in the 
employment of the County of Winnebago by payment of the amount of $137,834.79 for 
permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 

 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted,                                                                  
 
 



2 
 

  
                                                                                                                                                                  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
   

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this    24th   day of        August    2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
AUGUST 24, 2017 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM AGAINST 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED  

LORI STUTSMAN VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Lori Stutsman for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Winnebago County States Attorney’s office; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of $38,880.11 for a Workers Compensation 
case and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the interest 
of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the proposed 
settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Lori Stutsman 
verses County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Lori Stutsman while in the 
employment of the Winnebago County State’s Attorney’s office by payment of the amount of 
$38,880.11 for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 

 
 
 
       Respectfully Submitted,                                                                  
 
 



2 
 

  
                                                                                                                                                                  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
   

(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 
 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this    24th   day of        August    2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



 
Attachment 

ZONING COMMITTEE  
OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 

September 7, 2017 
 

1 
 

 
A. PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS:   

 
TO BE LAID OVER:  NONE 
 

 TO BE VOTED ON:  NONE 
 
 

 B.   COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not intended  
        as a public notice): 

 
 Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that the next Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 13, 2017, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
County Administration Building.  The cases currently on the agenda are as follows: 

 
1.    Z-15-17 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 25.0 acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to 

the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District at 10076 Fish Hatchery Road in Burritt Township, 
District 1. 

2. SU-08-17 A Special Use Permit for a Retreat Center in the A2, Agriculture-Related Business District at 
10076 Fish Hatchery Road in Burritt Township, District 1. 

3. Z-16-17 A Map Amendment to rezone +/- 1.61  acres from the AG, Agricultural Priority District to 
the RE, Rural Estate District (a sub-district of the RA District) at 8268 McMichael Road in Harlem 
Township, District 7. 

         

 Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting is 
tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, September 27, 2017, at 5:45 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
County Administration Building. 
 

 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



 
  

 

 
404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: August 29, 2017 
Item: Barber Colman Village Redevelopment Project 
Prepared by:  County Board Chairman Frank Haney and County Administrator Amanda Hamaker 
 

County Code: 2017-CO-062: Ordinance Adopting a Host Fee Allocation & Award Policy 
 
Background: The historic Barber-Colman company was one of the most important companies in the 
United States in the first half of the twentieth century.  This is because Howard Colman had a passion for 
learning, invention, and developing his work force.  In fact, Colman was one of the first CEOs in the 
country to develop an apprenticeship program to train 16-year olds to be skilled manufacturing 
workers.  He also established an Experimental Department to develop new technologies.   
 
The City of Rockford has applied for and stands to receive an U.S. Economic Development Administration 
(EDA) grant for site improvements to the now dilapidated industrial site, pending its partnership with 
Rock Valley College, to redevelop the site into a technical-career training center. In preparation for this 
grant, Administration allowed the City to include reference to a potential matching investment by the 
County. The grant award is now imminent and time-sensitive, and the City seeks a formal County Board 
commitment for the project. 
 
The opportunity to spearhead a legacy of learning, invention, and workforce development for Winnebago 
County residents represents an imperative investment in local economic and workforce development. A 
Host Fee commitment is appropriate given the location’s past, and understanding the critical economic 
needs of the community.  
 
Other facts about the project: 

• It will rejuvenate the 22-acre deteriorating former factory site – already under City ownership – 
into a multi-phase, mixed-use development beginning with a technical career training center 
focused on vocational and technical education and job training 

• It will help to fill the local labor market gap for skilled workers for middle-class waged jobs that 
do not require a bachelor’s degree 

• The first phase of the redevelopment is approximately $9.7 million dollars in capital and 
infrastructure improvements – this is where a County and other financial commitment comes in.  
These improvements include hard costs related to infrastructure, sewer, parking lots, street 
lights, etc… 



 
  

 

 
404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101  Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

• $2 million in EDA grant funds pending Rock Valley College partnership agreement and Winnebago 
County funding commitment (September 1, 2017 federal deadline – extended to September 16 
to accommodate Winnebago County and Rock Valley Board schedule) 

• The return on investment for phase one of the redevelopment is the successful launch of 
programs at Barber Colman Village by RVC in 2019 

• The County investment is recommended for a multi-year Host Fee commitment equal to the City’s, 
as stipulated in the EDA grant, not to exceed 3.2 million dollars; payable in equal payments over a 
minimum of six (6) and not to exceed ten (10) years 

Recommendation: The Board’s Economic Development Committee, chaired by Member Fred Wescott 
has reviewed the Resolution presented, and it is scheduled for presentation to the Economic 
Development Committee on Wednesday, August 30.  The Board will be asked to consider approval of this 
Resolution on September 7, 2017, committing multi-year Host Fee funding for the Barber-Colman Village 
project. An intergovernmental agreement will be prepared and presented for the Board’s consideration 
pending the successful award of the EDA grant. 
 
Attachments: 
RRStar: July 23, 2017, Federal grants could spark transformation of Barber-Colman 
RRStar: July 24, 2017, Rockford applies for $3.2M Barber-Colman grant 
RRStar: July 30, 2017: Our View: Alderman step up on Barber-Colman campus project 
 



Sponsored by Fred Wescott 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2017 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Economic Development Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE A COMMITMENT TO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF ROCKFORD IN SUPPORT OF THE BARBER 

COLMAN VILLAGE REDEVELOPMENT PROJECT 
  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockford (“City”) has submitted an application to the Economic 
Development Administration (“EDA”) for site improvements to support the redevelopment of 
the Barber Colman property including the Rock Valley College Technical Career Training 
Institute (“RVC”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has received a favorable response to said application, with a condition for 
EDA funding being a financial commitment from Winnebago County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the project consists of the renovation of the former Barber Colman site and seeks 
to create a career training campus for RVC. The project site, in the City’s west side, is located 
south of Morgan St., east of S. Main St., north of Lane St., and west of the Rock River, as 
indicated in Attachment A, is currently owned by the City of Rockford, and the buildings that 
remain are abandoned and deteriorating as they sit dormant. The City plans to assist with the cost 
of the site improvements while the cost of the building rehabilitation would lie with RVC and 
Rockford Local Development Corporation (“RLDC”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the redevelopment of the Barber Colman site constitutes a major economic 
development project that will benefit the residents of Winnebago County in terms of workforce 
development opportunities, and is therefore eligible for consideration for Host Fee funding 
consistent with Board Policy 2017-CO-062; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County supports the EDA grant application submitted by the City, and wishes to 
commit financial support through County Host Fee revenue toward the redevelopment of Barber 
Colman Village; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the successful awarding of an EDA grant to the 
City, the County Board will enter into an intergovernmental agreement with the City establishing 
a multi-year Host Fee commitment to the Barber Colman project not to exceed 3.2 million 



dollars. (Payable in equal installments over a period of six (6) to ten (10) years as agreed upon by 
the City and the County 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, this resolution shall go into effect immediately upon its 
adoption 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver a copy of this Resolution to the County Administrator and the Mayor of the 
City of Rockford. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
 
AGREE      DISAGREE 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Fred Wescott, Chairman    Fred Wescott, Chairman  
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
L.C. Wilson      L.C. Wilson 
 
______________________________  ________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby 
    
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia      Dave Fiduccia 
  

 
The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2017. 
 
 
  
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

A



8/28/2017 Federal grant could spark transformation of Barber-Colman

http://www.rrstar.com/news/20170723/federal-grant-could-spark-transformation-of-barber-colman 1/3

By Jeff Kolkey 
Staff writer 
Posted Jul 23, 2017 at 10:00 AM
Updated Jul 23, 2017 at 10:46 PM

RVC manufacturing campus could prepare students for
manufacturing careers

ROCKFORD — The City Council Monday will consider a $9.7 million plan to secure a
matching federal grant and kick-start the transformation of the former Barber-Colman
site with a Rock Valley College manufacturing education campus as an anchor.

The money would be used to pay for improvements at the 22-acre site, including roads,
water mains, sanitary sewer lines, storm sewer, landscaping, parking and lighting. It
would allow Rock Valley College to redevelop two of the aging industrial buildings
into a Technical Career Training Institute that would prepare students for careers in
manufacturing.

It’s a project with the power not only to spark a transformation of the dilapidated
industrial site in southwest Rockford, but also a large swath of Rockford itself, said
Alderwoman Venita Hervey, D-5.

“This is going to give people direct jobs — immediate job training for jobs out there ...
like cold-form manufacturing and welding,” Hervey said. “It’s not that far of a leap to
say that if we get people working and into these jobs, I think we will see a
corresponding drop in crime and improved neighborhoods.”

The plan would require financial commitments from Rockford, Winnebago County
and Rock Valley College.

Rockford would apply to the U.S. Economic Development Administration for a $3.2
million grant. Its pre-application was approved and the city received notice Tuesday
that it can apply for the full grant. But the application is due Saturday, leaving officials
in a time crunch.

Federal grant could spark transformation of
Barber-Colman

mailto:jkolkey@rrstar.com
http://www.rrstar.com/


8/28/2017 Federal grant could spark transformation of Barber-Colman

http://www.rrstar.com/news/20170723/federal-grant-could-spark-transformation-of-barber-colman 2/3

If the grant is approved, Rockford and Winnebago County would split the remaining
$6.5 million cost of the public improvements on a portion of the site in the 1200 block
of Rock Street. The council and County Board must sign off on the plan.

Rock Valley College would team with the nonprofit Rockford Local Development
Corp. to fund redevelopment of the industrial buildings using historic tax credits and
other financing mechanisms. The space is needed as Rock Valley moves to meet
demand for cold-form manufacturing programs.

Rockford acquired the sprawling property for $775,000 in 2002. It was home to
Barber-Colman’s textile machinery operations from the early 1900s to 1984. Hundreds
of thousands of dollars have been spent since 2003 to remove dilapidated structures and
clean up environmental hazards at the site.

The $9.7 million plan could be considered “phase 1A” of a larger plan to redevelop the
site — it has nine industrial buildings on the National Register of Historic Places — as
“Colman Village,” a mixed-use development with commercial, residential and other
uses anchored by the Rock Valley College manufacturing campus, Rockford City
Administrator Todd Cagnoni said.

Cagnoni said the investment is critical to the future of the city and county, despite a
looming financial crisis. To come up with its share of the money for the public
improvements, Rockford could tap its capital-improvement program and
redevelopment, water and parking funds.

“As a community we can’t afford not to do it,” Cagnoni said. “When you look at the
needs of the residents of the city and county and greater region, and what we are
hearing from employers in regards to individuals prepared to enter the workforce, this
is a critical step in filling that gap. Not only in preparing our own residents (for jobs),
but in helping to attract additional employers to the community.”

JeÛf Kolkey: 815-987-1374; ; 

MOST POPULAR STORIES
 Ad : (0:12)

mailto:jkolkey@rrstar.com
http://twitter.com/jeffkolkey


8/28/2017 Rockford applies for $3.2M Barber-Colman grant

http://www.rrstar.com/news/20170724/rockford-applies-for-32m-barber-colman-grant 1/2

By Jeff Kolkey 
Staff writer 
Posted Jul 24, 2017 at 9:49 PM
Updated Jul 24, 2017 at 10:33 PM

RVC manufacturing campus could prepare students for in-
demand careers

ROCKFORD — Aldermen authorized the city to move forward tonight with a $9.7
million plan to secure a federal matching grant that could spark the transformation of
the 22-acre former Barber-Colman industrial site into a mixed-use development
anchored by a Rock Valley College manufacturing education campus.

The money would be used to pay for improvements to a portion of the sprawling
industrial site at Rock and Loomis streets, including roads, water mains, sanitary sewer
lines, storm sewer, landscaping, parking and lighting. But despite City Council
approval, Ald. Venita Hervey, D-5, said it is a complex proposal that will require
financial commitments from Rockford, Winnebago County and Rock Valley College to
ultimately come to fruition.

“I’m cautiously excited,” Hervey said. “Nobody wants (Barber-Colman to work) more
than I do, but it’s a series of moving parts and all those parts have to come together.
This is just hurdle No. 1.”

Application for the grant was approved by City Council unanimously and without
debate.

Hervey and other supporters of the project believe that a Rock Valley College
Technical Career Training Institute in southwest Rockford could give people in
impoverished areas of the city access to in-demand careers, prepare them for living
wage jobs and improve quality of life in the city.

Rockford was, after submitting pre-application information, invited by the U.S.
Economic Development Administration to apply for a $3.2 million grant.

Rockford applies for $3.2M Barber-Colman grant

mailto:jkolkey@rrstar.com
http://www.rrstar.com/


8/28/2017 Rockford applies for $3.2M Barber-Colman grant

http://www.rrstar.com/news/20170724/rockford-applies-for-32m-barber-colman-grant 2/2

 

It would require Winnebago County and Rockford to split the remaining $6.5 million
cost of the public improvements.

Ald. Kevin Frost, R-4, said he has concerns about the project, but will support it if
Winnebago County and Rock Valley College are on board.

“If the county is involved and Rock Valley College is involved, we all go to the table
together,” Frost said. “I don’t want to have the exposure for only city of Rockford
residents.”

Rockford could tap its capital improvement program, redevelopment, water and
parking funds that would not exacerbate a looming operating budget crisis. Rock Valley
College would work with the nonprofit Rockford Local Development Corp. to secure
historic tax credits to redevelop two of the nine industrial buildings that remain on the
site.

Winnebago County Board members and Rock Valley College trustees have not yet
considered the proposals.

JeÛf Kolkey: 815-987-1374; ; 

MOST POPULAR STORIES

‹ Previous Next ›

mailto:jkolkey@rrstar.com
http://twitter.com/jeffkolkey


8/28/2017 Our View: Aldermen step up on Barber-Colman campus project - Opinion - Rockford Register Star - Rockford, IL

http://www.rrstar.com/opinion/20170730/our-view-aldermen-step-up-on-barber-colman-campus-project 1/2

By The Editorial Board
Posted Jul 30, 2017 at 2:00 PM

We applaud the Rockford City Council for voting unanimously to move forward
in response to an invitation from the federal government to apply for a $3.2
million grant to develop infrastructure at the 22-acre site of the old Barber-
Colman factory on Rock Street.

We understand this grant also requires Rock Valley College and Winnebago
County government to commit to funding the remaining $6.5 million of the $9.7
million project to install streets, water mains, sewer and storm water lines, and
parking and lighting.

This is a small portion of a dramatic, $32.3 million plan to create a mixed-use
development out of buildings that were once part of the old textile machine
factory, which has been vacant for two decades or more. At one time, more than
3,000 people worked there.

Key to the redevelopment would be an RVC vocational and technical education
and job training program with a particular emphasis on life skills and science,
technology, engineering and math, or STEM, careers.

Also in the master plan for the redevelopment are retail businesses, restaurants
and office space. There’s also been talk of providing space for business startups
and existing industries. Even urban farming, perhaps the indoor variety, is
among the many possible uses of the campus.

Of urgent importance, though, is getting the technical training portion of the
campus up and running.

Rockford has many jobs going begging in its vibrant industrial sector. An
estimated 70 percent of current industrial jobs are held by people in their 50s and
60s, more of whom are retiring every day. We don’t have enough trained people

Our View: Aldermen step up on Barber-Colman
campus project

http://www.rrstar.com/


8/28/2017 Our View: Aldermen step up on Barber-Colman campus project - Opinion - Rockford Register Star - Rockford, IL

http://www.rrstar.com/opinion/20170730/our-view-aldermen-step-up-on-barber-colman-campus-project 2/2

to fill the vacancies.

The nation’s public schools decided in the 1980s to get out of the vocational
training business, without consulting people outside the education bubble. No
other organizations have done an adequate job picking up the pieces and starting
new programs. If we don’t do this now, we risk losing even more of our
manufacturing economy to other parts of the world that do believe in the
importance of vocational education.

Today’s well-paying industrial jobs are done not on grimy factory floors but in
clean, laboratory-like settings that must remain climate-controlled and dust-free
at all times to build the precision components required by aerospace companies
and federal agencies like the Defense Department and NASA.

Looking at the overall Barber-Colman project, yes, we know it’s bold and we
know it’s going to be difficult to pull off. Ald. Venita Hervey, D-5th, who is the
project’s biggest backer, knows this as well.

“I’m cautiously excited. Nobody wants (Barber-Colman to work) to work more
than I do,” she told the Rockford Register Star. “But it’s a series of moving parts
and all those parts have to come together. This is just hurdle number one.”

To be sure, progress is being made on the South Main corridor into downtown.
The state and city have done a superb job rebuilding South Main Street into a
modern, concrete roadway. The beautiful new Morgan Street Bridge adds a
dynamic piece of infrastructure to the area.

The pending construction of the Embassy Suites hotel in the old Amerock
factory will also help bring renewal and growth to the corridor.

The Barber-Colman campus is the next, logical step to revitalizing the oldest part
of the Forest City and providing much-needed training for the industrial jobs of
today and tomorrow.



�

������ �	���
� �� � ���	
�������
������	��� ����� 
����� �� ��	�
�� �� ���
������ �� ������
��� ��
������
� ��� ���	�� �����
��� ������
� 
���� �� ��� ������ �� ����
������
� � ��������
�� 	���
����� � ���
����
��� ��� �� ��������
�� � ������
� ���� ��
��� ���� �� ���
� ������
� �
����� ��� ������
��
� �� ��� ���� ����
! �� ��
 ����� ������
� ���
�����

��� ���� ����
 �� ��� ��	�
�� ��
 �������� ���! ���
��	�
�� ������
��� ��
������
� �� ��� ���� ����
 �� � ���
��
�� ��
�� ��
 ��������! �����! �� ������� ���� �����
����� ���� �� �
���� 	
������ �� �������� ���� ���
��
�� ��� ���
 ���� "� �� ������ ���� �� �����
��� ����
�����
� �� ��	�
� ��
 ���� 	��	�� �� ��� ��
��
 #�
��
$
%���� ���	�� �� �&'' ���� (�
���� "��� � 	���� ���� �
���
��� �����
�$$� 	���� ���
� �� �� ���� �������!
�
��������! �� � ��������� ������� �	�
�� �	���� �
���	�� ���� ������ ��� ��
��! �� ����� � � ����� ����

���� �� ��� )���
� %�����



Rock Valley College Technical Career Training Institute 
Ideally and Centrally Located within the RVC District Service Area 











URBAN GROWTH 
ORGANICS

The Rock Valley College Technical Career Training Institute is the heart of the 
Colman Village Campus, a 22-acre former factory site.  The goal of the Colman 
Village Campus Plan is to transform the site into a mixed-use development that 
includes vocational and technical education and job training, with a particular 
emphasis on life skills and STEM careers. 

In addition, the Colman Village Campus Plan will offer other uses including 
residential loft space, retail and hospitality, as well as over 400,000 s.f. of 
office/industrial space for new start-ups and companies that fit in with the 
mission of the Colman Village Campus, which is to create a dynamic campus that 
fosters individual and community economic growth through educational, 
vocational training, and employment in a village atmosphere that promotes a 
healthy lifestyle and environment

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION
2017 GRANT APPLICATION and PROJECT

Partnership between:  Winnebago County, Rock Valley College, 
Rockford Local Development Council & City of Rockford



Buildings 17 (15,000) & 18 (31,100) are ideal for open floor plan vocational training and manufacturing 
work space.  Building 17 is a potential location for light manufacturing incubator or maker space.



Future campus of Colman Village, located in Rockford, Illinois along the Rock
River at the historic Barber-Colman factory campus in Winnebago County,
Illinois.

Colman Village, registered on the National Register of Historic Places, is a
mixed-use campus which offers vocational and technical education and job
training. Colman Village offers a variety of land use amenities, including
residential loft space, retail and hospitality, as well as over 400,000 s.f. of
office/industrial space for new start-ups and companies.




������������� �������� �!��"�#$"%



&� ���'�!��"�#$"%�'"�(�)��*%����+



&� ���'�!��"�#$"%�
*������������




���-

���3


���4 
���6 
���+


���7


���8

	�*($��&�**$� �� ��$��9 �
,*$���'���:%�9�����

� %�!$� %�,�:*�!��������'��$#
& ��!* �	�"!�*$������$� ( ��
, % ��"�$��	�"!�*$������$� ( ��
)�� �,$���� %�!$�����



,�����-�
��	�&�

�.�	�

�/��

��	���	�
�	��������0	������1��������/�	�����



,�����-�
��	�&�

�.�	�

�/��

��	���	�
�	�������������/�1���0	������	�����



,�����-�
��	�&�

�.�	�

�/��

��	���	�
�	��������0	������1��������/�	�����



,�����-�
��	�&�

�.�	�

�/��

��	���	�
�	��������0	������1��������/�	�����



,�����-�
��	�&�

�.�	�

�/��

��	���	�
�	��������0	������1��������/�	������2 �����
,
���-



����/��	��	�,��-

>:!&1&,(���



$	����
����!��%.��	�.���

��.������	���	�
��������/������,��������������
��	����������,�
�������/���5�



$	����
����!��%.��	�.���

��.������	���	�
��������/������,��������������
��	����������,�
�������/���5�

$%�*'���&�$���'�'/0�%,%'�%'$��'� �$��%�



�
�	.	����� &'�0,A�	������ +������,���
?���
,<������� 0�&3 &'
����������,=�
�� �793 31
?����,?����,��,����
��� :7' ���
-������,A����,��,A���,
=�
�� �73 7:
(����,<������� >' 3:
?�����
�,<�������,��,���� '
������
�!,"@,,������,
2(��������
4 >3�3
(��
��B,*�(�,%�����
,?�		��,=
�C���,!,"�������,��
,(�
�����,��,
%��	����������!,)�
��
�,#������,(������,

���1���23�� ���
����'���	�



-�����	�1��"�$����	�	"�� 4356�%.��	�.��� '���	�������1
������
� &�77 1
?����,=
������� �370 &0
?�����,�����,��,�������
��� �301 7
?������
���,?�����
� 7�> &1
)��,����� �' 3'
������
�!,"@,,������,2(��������
4 >'&>
(��
��B,*�(�,%�����
,?�		��,=
�C���!,"�������,��
,(�
�����,��,
%��	����������!,)�
��
�,#������,(������

���1���57�� ���
����'���	�



)���,A�	������,(	������D����,��,(��
�
)���,A�	������,(	������D����
)���,A�	������,(��
�

������
,"����
�,%�����
,��,?(�



�����,+���

������
�,
+������,

A�	������,
(��
�!,&'�:

������
�,
%����,�,

A�	������,
���
�!�119$

&'�:

�119,
A�	����

��

&'�:,
A�	����

��

������
�,
%����,�,

A�	������!
�119$&'�:

�119,
+������,

A�	������

&'�:,
+������,

A�	������
@��,������!,%�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� 9�1&H $��'7H �:!9:� �&!0>7 $�!:>0 �:9!07> �:1!731
%������!,"@,?��
�	�����,�
�� >�79H $��71H ��!97' 1!07: $&!:17 �:9!07> �:1!731
I��
���!,?",,?��
�	�����,�
�� 0�99H $&�'1H 1!>>' >!9&> $&!9:0 �:9!07> �:1!731
%�������!,.),,?��
�	�����,�
�� :�:>H $��>&H >!911 0!>17 $&!&'& �:9!07> �:1!731
?���	����!,?+,?��
�	�����,
�
�� :���H '�>0H :!0&9 0!:01 1&� �:9!07> �:1!731
)�����!,�J,,?��
�	�����,�
�� &�39H ��&0H �!933 :!>'> �!73� �:9!07> �:1!731
=�������	���!,=�,?��
�	�����,�
�� &�:&H $'�91H 0!000 :!&0: $�!&'� �:9!07> �:1!731
+��,F�
�!,+F,?��
�	�����,�
�� &��:H $��7:H 3!:3' &!173 $&!:73 �:9!07> �:1!731
)�
���
�!,%�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��31H $'��&H &!:>> &!&&3 $�0� �:9!07> �:1!731
������
�!,"@,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��39H $��31H 0!:1& &!&'9 $&!�90 �:9!07> �:1!731
?��������!,/",,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��03H $'��1H &!&>1 &!'&& $&07 �:9!07> �:1!731
#����!,?�,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��:0H $'�&0H &!�9> �!9>1 $:�7 �:9!07> �:1!731
I����!,.),,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��:'H '�73H 737 �!9�1 �!'>& �:9!07> �:1!731
(������!,/�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��&1H '�97H 39' �!717 �!&�7 �:9!07> �:1!731
��������
!,+F,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ��&:H $'��0H �!910 �!7�7 $�77 �:9!07> �:1!731
+��,)���!,%�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ���9H $'���H �!79& �!>3� $�:� �:9!07> �:1!731
(�,I����!,%�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ���7H '�>3H 7&' �!>0� 1&� �:9!07> �:1!731
#������!,+F,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ���7H '�01H 10' �!>:� >1� �:9!07> �:1!731
I�����!,�J,,?��
�	�����,�
�� ���'H '��9H �!&9: �!30& &31 �:9!07> �:1!731
-
��,��	���!,?",,?��
�	�����,
�
�� ��':H $'��0H �!>&& �!00> $�7> �:9!07> �:1!731
%������!,.),?��
�	�����,�
�� ��'�H '��&H �!&:: �!0�> �9: �:9!07> �:1!731
(�,K���!,%�,,?��
�	�����,�
�� '�17H '�:7H 9&' �!:01 3&1 �:9!07> �:1!731
"����	����!,"+,,?��
�	�����,�
�� '�1>H $'�0'H �!991 �!:0: $30> �:9!07> �:1!731
(��,@����!,?.,?��
�	�����,�
�� '�1'H $'�:3H �!7:9 �!&31 $071 �:9!07> �:1!731
=����6!,�L,,?��
�	�����,�
�� '�91H '�'0H �!�9' �!&0> >> �:9!07> �:1!731

�.=,&3,��(�A+A�,=�.I*%A�(,#F,*�(�?A��.=.@"��+,��A�





,�	?�����	��8 �; �	��@
�����"�6:�=:�5A�)�5>��B
����#		��"�C >5:A3>���#�

@��,8,#������,��;������� M,,,,,&3>!&3'
$	����&����)�@
�����"���B
����	� D�����4E7:4E3

#������,%���
�����,��
,#�������,0515�75�9 M�>!1'�!>�'
2I���,��,������,����,#�������,��
,04
(���,��,"�
���
����
� M,,0!�1&!3''
%������� M,,&!�'1!0��
$	����*�����	� D42:432:E45

(���,%����,
2�5A!,	�
����!,)�%,%��������!,(���
���!,����4 M,,0!'�&!70�
$	�����	����	� D��6:354:A65

%�������,I�����	���,A����,2%IA4
����,8,����
��� M,,�!:09!>'3
$	�����	������	
��������� D4>:>45:55A
%���
�����,"��
��� M,,,,,,::&!:7'
#
����,"��
��� M,,,,,,&>'!9&7
I�����	�
,��� M,,&!1�3!9'>
$	����,�	?�����	� D24:223:543

,�%&�-�'��(�@ �/%$�%�$�-�$%��#+��
�+�9���&&%(��+&&%/%�$%�*'���&����%%��%� ��$�+'�)�$���'�'/��%'$%�



,�	?���������
��8�	
���;��	��@
�����"�6:�=:�5A�)�5>��B
����#		��"�C >5:A3>���#�

����
��,)����
��,��6,%
����� M,,0!�>1!:�3

(����,)����
��,��6,%
����� M,,:!911!07&

+��,?�
���,��6,%
����,A;���� M,,7!31&!'>'

%���,%��
������, M,,3!07'!>''

@���
���,@��,�
��,�<% M,,9!39:!797,

I�����	�
,���,@���
����,
2#�,���,�
��,���
�,=�
��,"��������4 M,,�!9'7!33:

I�����	�
,A;���� M,,,,,9'9!&3:
$	�����	
��� D24:225:363

,�%&�-�'��(�@ �/%$�%�$�-�$%��#+�
�+�9���&&%(��+&&%/%�$%�*'���&����%%�

%� ��$�+'�)�$���'�'/��%'$%�



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



 
Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 7, 2017 

 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Submitted by:  Operations & Administrative Committee 
 

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME, AND LOCATION 
OF EACH MEETING OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 

 
 

 WHEREAS, under provisions of Illinois Revised Statues, Chapter 102, Section 42.02, the 
County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to provide public notice of the date, 
time, and location of its regularly scheduled meetings; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago is required to hold regular 
meetings during the months of June and September and may hold additional regular meetings at 
such times as may be determined. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that the Board shall conduct its regular meetings on the 2nd and 4th Thursdays 
of each month of Fiscal Year 2018 at 6:00 o’clock P.M., except as indicated hereunder (*): 

 
October 12, 2017 (Thursday)   April 12, 2018 (Thursday) 
October 26, 2017 (Thursday)  April 26, 2018 (Thursday) 
   
November 9, 2017 (Thursday)  May 10, 2018 (Thursday) 
*November 21, 2017 (Tuesday)*  May 24, 2018 (Thursday) 
   
*December 7, 2017 (Thursday)*  June 14, 2018 (Thursday) 
*December 21, 2017 (Thursday)*  June 28, 2018 (Thursday) 
   
January 11, 2018 (Thursday)  July 12, 2018 (Thursday) 
January 25, 2018 (Thursday)  July 26, 2018 (Thursday) 
   
February 8, 2018 (Thursday)  August 9, 2018 (Thursday) 
February 22, 2018 (Thursday)  August 23, 2018 (Thursday) 
   
March 8, 2018 (Thursday)  *September 6, 2018 (First Thursday)* 
March 22, 2018 (Thursday)  September 27, 2018 



2 
 

      
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all meetings scheduled shall be in the County Board 
Chambers, Winnebago County Courthouse Building, 400 West State Street, Rockford, Illinois. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall publish this 
Resolution in a newspaper of general circulation within three (3) days of this date, and said 
Resolution shall be in full force and effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board shall prepare and 
deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Clerk. 
 
Signatures on next page. 
 
  



3 
 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                  
Respectfully Submitted,                                                                 
OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

   
(AGREE)  (DISAGREE) 

 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of  
 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 
 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



FY2018 County Board Meeting Calendar 
RED = Holiday 

Yellow = Proposed Board Meeting Date 

October 
 

November 
 

December 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31            

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30          

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31       

 

5:  12:  19:  27:  
 

4:  10:  18:  26:  
 

3:  10:  18:  26:  
 

January 
 

February 
 

March 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

    1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28    

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

    1 2 3 
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

 

1:  8:  16:  24:  31:  
 

7:  15:  23:  
 

1:  9:  17:  24:  31:   

April 
 

May 
 

June 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30      

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

  1 2 3 4 5 
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 

 

8:  15:  22:  29:  
 

7:  15:  21:  29:  
 

6:  13:  20:  28:   

July 
 

August 
 

September 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31            

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

   1 2 3 4 
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31         

 

 
Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa 

      1 
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30       

 

6:  12:  19:  27:  
 

4:  11:  18:  26:  
 

2:  9:  16:  24:  
www.timeanddate.com 



County Board Meeting 
September 7, 2017   

 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Gary Jury 
Submitted by:   Operations & Administrative Committee 
   

2017 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION TO RENEW AGREEMENT FOR CHIROPRACTIC SERVICES 
 

 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances for the County of Winnebago, Illinois, provides as in 

Article VI, Section 2-341, that all purchases for and contracts for supplies, materials, equipment, and 
contractual services, the value of which is estimated to exceed $12,000, shall be based on 
competitive proposals by the County Board; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County has a multi-year contract for Chiropractic Services with 
Hulsebus Rockford Chiropractic, LLC , which started June 2014; and 

WHEREAS, by the current terms, the contract 3rd and final renewal period is from June 1, 
2017 to May 31, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County and Hulsebus Rockford Chiropractic, LLC have agreed 
to extend the contract through May 31, 2018 at the original fee schedule: 

 ON-SITE ADJUSTMENT - $40.00 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the C o u n t y  Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois, that the County recommends a contract renewal with Hulsebus Rockford Chiropractic, LLC, 
1877 Daimler Road, Rockford, IL 61112 for Chiropractic Services thru June 30, 2018. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effective 
immediately upon its adoption and the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, Human 
Resources Director, and County Auditor. 
 
   



     
 Respectfully Submitted, 

 OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

 JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

 ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

 JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

 KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI  
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 







































































































 

PUBLIC SAFETY 
 COMMITTEE 



 

County Board:  9/7/2017 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

Sponsored by:   Dave Fiduccia 
Submitted by:   Public Safety 
   

2017 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY SHERIFF TO EXTEND THE CONTRACT FOR TOWING OF 

IMPOUNDS AND COUNTY VEHICLES 
 

 
WHEREAS, in 2016 the Winnebago County Sheriff awarded a multi-year contract for 

Towing of Impounds and County Vehicles to A to Z Towing; and 

WHEREAS, per the terms of Bid 16-2073, the contract is up for its first renewal period; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Winnebago County Sheriff and A to Z Towing has agreed their fee 

schedule shall remain the same through the first renewal period of August 31, 2017 to August 

31, 2018: 

$85.00 ENTIRE COUNTY PER TOW 
$85.00 SECTION ONE PER TOW 
$85.00 SECTION TWO PER TOW 
$0.00 COUNTY OWNED VEHICLES PER TOW 

WHEREAS, the Public Safety Committee has determined that the funding for the 

aforementioned services is as follows: 

13500 - 43350 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Sheriff shall utilize A to Z Towing, 6905 Elm 

Avenue, Rockford, Illinois 61111 for Towing of Impounds and County Vehicles, and their contract 

is renewed through August 31, 2018. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to prepare 
and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the Director of Purchasing, Finance Director, 
Winnebago County Sheriff, and County Auditor. 



 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 
 

  

DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 DAVE FIDUCCIA, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

AARON BOOKER 
 
 

 AARON BOOKER 
 
 

DAN FELLARS 
 
 

 DAN FELLARS 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

 ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

 DOROTHY REDD 
 
 

FRED WESCOTT  FRED WESCOTT 
 

 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2017. 

 

 

 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 

MARGIE M. MULLINS 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia  County Board Meeting: September 7, 2017 
 

 
RESOLUTION 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
2017 CR 

 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF A TERMINATION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT AMONG THE COUNTY OF 
WINNEBAGO, THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES AND 
THE ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY FOR 
OPERATION OF THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2015, the County of Winnebago, the Illinois Department of 
Human Services and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, entered into a 
renewed intergovernmental agreement to establish and maintain the Illinois Center of 
Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority has developed a 
conflict of interest and can no longer be a party to the intergovernmental agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, the Illinois Department of Human 
Services and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority have mutually agreed to 
terminate the intergovernmental agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago that the Chairman of the County Board of the County of Winnebago is 
authorized and directed to execute an Termination Agreement terminating the 
Intergovernmental Agreement among the County of Winnebago, the Illinois Department 
of Human Services and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority for the 
establishment and operation of the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health 
and Justice dated October 1, 2015, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit A. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to John Maki, 
Executive Director, Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, 300 W. Adams, Suite 



200, Chicago, Illinois 60606 and to James T. Dimas, Secretary, Illinois Department of 
Human Services, 401 S. Clinton Street, 7th Floor, Chicago, Illinois 60607. 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

      Public Safety Committee 
      
      _____________________________ 
      Dave Fiduccia, Chairman 
 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Dorothy Redd    
  
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Dan Fellars      Fred Wescott 
 
_____________________________   
Eli Nicolosi       
 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of __________________________, 2017. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
  



Exhibit A 

 
 

TERMINATION AGREEMENT 
 

Regarding 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 

AMONG 
THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, 

THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES, 
AND 

THE ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION AUTHORITY  
FOR THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 

 
 

The County of Winnebago (“County”), the Illinois Department of Human Services (“DHS”), and the 
Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority (“ICJIA”), hereby enter into this Termination Agreement 
of the Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) which established and maintained the Illinois 
Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice (“Center”) and was effective for the period of 
October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2019.  The County, DHS, and ICJIA are collectively referred 
to herein as “Parties” or individually as a “Party”. 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agreement entered into by the Parties was to establish and maintain the 
Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice. 
 
 WHEREAS, the current Agreement, executed on September 4, 2015, was effective for the 
period of October 1, 2015, through September 30, 2019.   
 
 WHEREAS, the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority has developed a conflict of 
interest in being a Party to the Agreement. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties hereto have mutually agreed to terminate the Agreement. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and mutual recitals and agreements herein 
contained, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 
 1. Termination.  The Parties agree to terminate the Agreement.  The effective date of the 
termination is July 1, 2017.  Effective as of the date of termination, the Agreement shall terminate 
and be of no further force and effect.  Parties shall have no further obligations thereunder or with 
respect thereto, to the Agreement. 
 
 2. Due Authorization.  Each Party hereto hereby represents and warrants that the 
signature to this Termination Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary action on its part 
and that the signator executing this Termination Agreement on its behalf has the authority to execute 
the same and to bind it to the terms and conditions of this Termination Agreement. 



 3. Severability.  If any term or other provision of this Termination Agreement is invalid, 
illegal or incapable of being enforced by any rule of law, or public policy, all other conditions and 
provisions of this Termination Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and effect so long as 
the economic or legal substance of this Agreement is not affected in any manner adverse to any 
Party.  Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid; illegal or incapable of 
being enforced, the Parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to 
effect the original intent of the parties as closely as possible in a mutually acceptable manner. 
 
 4. Counterparts.  This Termination Agreement may be executed and delivered (including 
by email or facsimile transmission) in one or more counterparts, and by the different Parties hereto in 
separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of 
which taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement. 
 
 5. Entire Agreement.  This Termination Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
among the Parties with respect to the Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Termination Agreement to be executed 
by their duly authorized representatives. 
 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO    ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 
 
 
___________________________________  ______________________________________ 
Frank Haney      James T. Dimas 
Chairman of the Winnebago County Board  Secretary 
404 Elm Street, Suite 533    401 S. Clinton Street, 7th Floor 
Rockford, IL  61101     Chicago, IL  60607 
 
Date:  ______________    Date:  ______________ 
 

ILLINOIS CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION 
AUTHORITY  
 
 
John Maki 
Executive Director 
300 W. Adams, Street, Suite 200 
Chicago, IL  60606 
Date:  ________________   

        
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
Date: __________________ 



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia  County Board Meeting: September 7, 2017 
 

RESOLUTION 
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 

2017 CR 
 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
AGREEMENT SETTING FORTH THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PARTIES 
FOR OPERATION OF THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2012 the County of Winnebago, in partnership with the Illinois 
Department of Human Services and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, 
established the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice to support 
the efforts of the court system and to combat the effects of drug use and executed an 
intergovernmental agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2015 said intergovernmental agreement was renewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary to set forth the responsibilities of the County and the 
University of Illinois for the day to day operations of the Illinois Center of Excellence for 
Behavioral Health and Justice; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the County to establish the 
respective responsibilities of the County and the University of Illinois in the operation of 
the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County 
of Winnebago that the Chairman of the County Board of the County of Winnebago is 
authorized and directed to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the County 
of Winnebago and the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois on behalf of the 
University of Illinois College of Medicine Rockford setting forth the responsibilities of 
the parties for the operation of the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and 
Justice, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 
effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Michelle Rock, 
Director, Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice, 1601 Parkview, 



Rockford, Illinois and Walter K. Knorr, Comptroller, the Board of Trustees of the 
University of Illinois. 

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

      Public Safety Committee 
      
      _____________________________ 
      Dave Fiduccia, Chairman 
 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Dorothy Redd    
  
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Dan Fellars      Fred Wescott 
 
_____________________________   
Eli Nicolosi       
 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of __________________________, 2017. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 
 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 1 of 9 

 

 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
AND 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 
FOR THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 

 
The County of Winnebago (“County”) and the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois 
(“University”), pursuant to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., hereby enter 
into this Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) to cooperate in the operation of the Illinois 
Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice (the “Center”). The County and University are 
collectively referred to herein as “Parties” or individually as a “Party”. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, various recommendations resulted from strategic planning meetings hosted by the 
Department of Human Services (DHS) in 2008-2010 at the regional and Statewide level held to better 
address the needs of individuals with mental illnesses and co-occurring substance use disorders who 
were involved with the criminal justice system; 

WHEREAS, one of the recommendations was the creation of an Illinois Center of Excellence for 
Behavioral Health and Justice; 

WHEREAS, a multidisciplinary group of stakeholders including, but not limited to DHS, the 
County, the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford and ICJIA, as well as the Mental Health 
Court Association of Illinois, and Treatment Alternatives for Safe Communities met to discuss the 
purpose, products, feasibility and structure of the Center; and 

WHEREAS, the Center has established a reputation for providing quality training, technical 
assistance, and information on issues related to persons with behavioral health disorders who are 
involved with the criminal justice system throughout the State of Illinois. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE 

 
1.1. Purpose. The purpose of this Agreement is to continue the collaborative relationship to 

continue the joint efforts for the operation of the Center, a program which provides training, technical 
assistance and information to facilitate appropriate responses to the needs of persons with behavioral 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 2 of 9 

 
health disorders who are involved with the criminal justice system through promoting the Center; 
providing training, technical assistance and information throughout Illinois; compile and disseminate 
information and research consistent with the mission of the Center; pursue collaborations with criminal 
justice and behavioral health stakeholders; and perform all necessary functions to fulfill the purposes of 
this Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE II 

ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

2.1. Executive Director. The Center shall be managed by an Executive Director. 

2.2. Supervision of the Executive Director.  The direct supervisor of the Executive Director 
shall be the Chief Judge of the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit, or his or her designee. 

2.3 Continuation of Agreement.  The Agreement dated December 8, 2011, between the 
County of Winnebago and the Circuit Court of the 17th Judicial Circuit, regarding employment and 
supervision of the Executive Director, shall ontinue to be followed by the County in the performance of 
this Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement. 

2.4. Responsibilities of the Executive Director. The Executive Director shall have the 
following responsibilities: 

(a) Oversee the administration of the Center; 
 

(b) Oversee all programming of the Center; 
 
(c) Facilitate and develop a strategic plan for the Center in conjunction with the 

Advisory Board;  
 

(d) Approve all Center contracts greater than $500 in value in consultation with his 
or her direct supervisor; 

 
(e) Develop and implement a business plan for the Center; 
 
(f) Seek funding, including grants, on behalf of the Center; 
 
(g) Maintain all financial reports; 
 
(h) Schedule all Advisory Board meetings; 

 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 3 of 9 

 
(i) Maintain documentation (notices, agendas, minutes, etc.) of all Advisory Board 

meetings; 
 
(j) Request legal consultation and representation through the County as needed; 
 
(k) Manage media and governmental relations; and 

 
(l) Appoint and remove members to the Advisory Board based on need of the 

Center and approval of the Parties. 
 
(m) The Center shall comply with the provisions of the Procurement Code [30 ILCS 

500/1 et seq.] pursuant to Section 3.5 of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act [5 ILCS 
220/3.5]. 

 
ARTICLE III 

ADVISORY BOARD OF CENTER OF EXCELLENCE 
 

3.1. The Center’s Advisory Board. The Center shall have an Advisory Board to assist the 
Center Executive Director with advice and expertise.  

3.2. Composition of Advisory Board. The Advisory Board appointees shall serve until they 
resign or are removed. The Advisory Board may include one or more representatives from the following 
agencies, organizations or groups: 

(a) Winnebago County 

(b) University of Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford 

 (c) Special Supreme Court Advisory Committee on Justice and Mental Health 
Planning; 

(d) Administrative Office of the Illinois Courts; 

(e) Illinois Department of Human Services; 

(f) Other members of the Illinois Judiciary, including retired members; 

(g) Law enforcement; 

(h) National Alliance on Mental Illnesses; 

(i) Treatment community providers representatives; and 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 4 of 9 

 
  (j) Others with expertise useful to the Center.   

   

ARTICLE IV 
CONTRIBUTIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF PARTIES 

4.1. Contributions and Responsibilities of the Parties. The Parties shall each provide, among 
other things, expertise, supplies, and equipment for the benefit of the Center. Specifically, each Party 
shall provide the following contributions and shall have the following responsibilities. 

(a) The County shall: 

(i) Serve as the fiscal agent for the Center; 
 

(ii) Hire the Center’s Executive Director as directed by the Advisory Board; 
 
(iii) Hire any other Center staff as directed by the Center’s Executive 

Director in consultation with the Advisory Board; 
 

(iv) Provide human resources and payroll functions for the Center’s staff 
including issuance of paychecks to staff; 

 
(v) Provide timekeeping for staff; 

 
(vi) Pay invoices on behalf of the Center as directed by the Center’s 

Executive Director; 
 

  (vii) Approve contracts for the Center for matters recommended by the 
 Executive Director and Advisory Board; 
 

(viii) Maintain the Center’s fund deposits and accounts; 
 

(ix) Prepare quarterly financial reports and additional reports, including for 
grant compliance, as requested by the Advisory Board; 

 
(x) Counter-sign all checks written by the Center Executive Director for 

amounts greater than $5000; 
(xi) Provide legal consultation as needed to the Center’s Advisory Board and 

Executive Director; and 
 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 5 of 9 

 
(xii) Maintain a general liability insurance policy for the Center. 
 

(b) The University shall: 

(i) Provide consultation, technical assistance and program support for the 
Center; 

 
(ii) Provide office space and equipment for the Center’s staff pursuant to an 

agreement to be entered into by the County on behalf of the Center and the University; 
 

(iii) Assist with identifying and securing regional and teleconference training 
sites; 
 

(iv) Provide support staff to the Center the cost of which shall be 
reimbursed by the Center at an agreed-upon rate, and under agreed-upon terms, to be 
set forth in a written agreement or memorandum of understanding between the Center 
and the University;  

 
(v) Provide research and evaluation staff to the Center the cost of which 

shall be reimbursed by the Center at an agreed-upon-rate, and under agreed-upon 
terms, to be set forth in a written agreement or memorandum of understanding 
between the Center and the University; 
 

(vi) Assist the Center with research and information identifying best 
practices consistent with the mission of the Center; 

 
(viii) Assist the Center with developing performance measures for its work 

generally; 
 
(ix) Host Advisory Board meetings; and 
 
(x) Have access to all data collected by the Center. 
 

4.2 Further Documents.  The Parties agree to enter into such further written agreements as 
may be necessary or desirable in order to facilitate their contributions and to carry out their respective 
obligations as set forth in this Article IV or elsewhere in this Agreement.  All such agreements shall be 
mutually agreed to by the Parties in form and substance. 

 
 
 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 6 of 9 

 
ARTICLE V 

LIABILITIES and IMMUNITIES 
 

5.1 Center Executive Director.   The Center’s Executive Director shall be deemed an 
employee of the County for purposes of unemployment insurance, workers compensation, all 
employment related claims including, but not limited to Title VII, Americans with Disabilities Act, Age 
Discrimination in Employment Act, the Illinois Human Rights Act and the Family and Medical Leave Act.  
The Center Executive Director shall enjoy the same immunities and indemnification as other County 
employees. 

 
5.2 Center Assistant Director.  The Center’s Assistant Director shall be deemed an employee 

of the County for purposes of unemployment insurance, workers compensation, all employment related 
claims including, but not limited to Title VII, Americans with Disabilities Act, Age Discrimination I 
Employment Act, the Illinois Human Rights Act and the Family and Medical Leave Act.  The Center 
Assistant Director shall enjoy the same immunities and indemnification as other County employees. 

 
5.3 Advisory Board Members Serving in their Official Capacities.  Each Advisory Board 

member of the Center shall serve on the Center’s Advisory Board in his/her capacity as an agent of 
his/her respective state agency, organization or county and in his/her respective ordinary course of 
business.  Any liabilities arising from an Advisory Board member’s participation on the Center’s Advisory 
Board, including any errors, omissions, or negligent torts alleged to have occurred during the ordinary 
course of Center business, shall enjoy the indemnifications and or immunities available to him/her 
through his/her state agency, organization or county.   
 

 
ARTICLE VI 

TERM AND TERMINATION 
 

6.1. Term. This Agreement shall begin on July 1, 2017 and, unless otherwise terminated by 
the Parties, shall continue through September 30, 2021. 

6.2. Termination. 

(a) This Agreement may be terminated by any Party for any or no reason upon 120 
days’ prior written notice to the other Party.  
 

(b) In the event any Party breaches this Agreement and fails to cure such breach 
within ten (10) days’ written notice thereof from the non-breaching Party, any non-breaching 
Party may terminate its participation in this Agreement upon written notice to the Party. 

 
 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 7 of 9 

 
ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

7.1. Renewal. This Agreement may be renewed for additional periods by mutual consent of 
the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties. 

7.2. Amendments. This Agreement may be modified or amended at any time during its term 
by mutual consent of the Parties, expressed in writing and signed by the Parties. 

7.3. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid, its other provisions 
shall not be affected thereby. 

7.4. Applicable Law and Severability. This Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the 
laws of the State of Illinois. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be or shall in 
fact be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions 
or in all cases because it conflicts with any other provision or provisions hereof or any constitution, 
statute, ordinance, rule of law or public policy, or for any reason, such circumstance shall not have the 
effect of rendering any other provision or provisions contained herein invalid, inoperative or 
unenforceable to any extent whatsoever. The invalidity of any one or more phrases, sentences, clauses, 
or sections contained in this Agreement shall not affect the remaining portions of this Agreement or any 
part thereof. In the event that this Agreement is determined to be invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall be terminated immediately. 

7.5. Records Retention. The Parties shall maintain for a minimum of five (5) years from the 
later of the date of final payment under this Agreement, or the expiration of this Agreement, adequate 
books, records and supporting documents to comply with 89 Ill. Adm. Code 509. If an audit, litigation or 
other action involving the records is begun before the end of the five-year period, the records shall be 
retained until all issues arising out of the action are resolved. 

7.6. No Personal Liability. No member, official, trustee, employee or agent of the County or 
University shall be individually or personally liable in connection with this Agreement. 

7.7. Assignment; Binding Effect. This Agreement, or any portion thereof, shall not be 
assigned by either of the Parties without the prior written consent of the other Party. This Agreement 
shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the County and University and their respective 
successors and permitted assigns. 

7.8. Precedence. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement and any of the 
exhibits hereto, this Agreement shall control. In the event there is a conflict between this Agreement 
and relevant statute(s) or Administrative Rule(s), the relevant statute(s) or rule(s) shall control. 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 8 of 9 

 
7.9. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 

Parties; no promises, terms, or conditions not recited, incorporated or referenced herein, including prior 
agreements or oral discussions, shall be binding upon either Party. 

7.10. Notices. All written notices required under this agreement shall be made by electronic 
mail to the e-mail addresses set forth below or at the email of the designee for each Party. 

 To the County:  Amanda Hamaker      
     ahamaker@wincoil.us 

 
 To University:  Alex Stagnaro-Green 
    asg@uic.edu 
 

7.11. Availability of Appropriations. Pursuant to 30 ILCS 500/20-60, the Parties’ respective 
obligations hereunder shall cease immediately, without penalty, if: (a) the Illinois General Assembly fails 
to make an appropriation sufficient to pay such obligations; (b) adequate funds are not appropriated by 
the Illinois General Assembly or granted to the respective Parties by other funding sources to allow the 
respective Parties to fulfill their obligations under this Agreement; or (c) funds appropriated are de-
appropriated or not allocated.  If any State agency contract is paid for in whole or in part with federal aid 
funds, grants, or loans and the provisions of this subsection would result in the loss of those federal-aid 
funds, grants, or loans, then the contract is exempt from the provisions of this subsection in order to 
remain eligible for those federal-aid funds, grants, or loans. 

7.12. Headings. Section and other headings contained in this Agreement are for reference 
purposes only and are not intended to describe, interpret, define or limit the scope, extent or intent of 
this Agreement or any provision hereof. 

7.13. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be considered to be one and the same agreement, binding on all Parties hereto, 
notwithstanding that all Parties are not signatories to the same counterpart. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement 
Center of Excellence 

 
Page 9 of 9 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized representatives. 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO 
 
 
 
Frank Haney 
Chairman of the Winnebago County Board 
404 Elm Street, Suite 533 
Rockford, IL 61101 
 
Date: __________________ 

THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, OF THE UNIVERSITY OF 
ILLINOIS 
 
 
Walter K. Knorr 
Comptroller 
 
 
 
Date: __________________ 

  
  
Attest: 
 
 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
Date: __________________ 
 



Sponsored by:  Dave Fiduccia  County Board Meeting: September 7, 2017 
 

 
RESOLUTION 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
SUBMITTED BY:  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 
2017 CR 

 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO 
CONTINUE THE OPERATION OF THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR BEHAVIORAL 
HEALTH AND JUSTICE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2012 the County of Winnebago, in partnership with the Illinois 
Department of Human Services and the Illinois Criminal Justice Information Authority, 
established the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice to support the 
efforts of the court system and to combat the effects of drug use and executed an 
intergovernmental agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2015 said intergovernmental agreement was renewed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the County to continue to operate 
and maintain the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the County to renew the 
intergovernmental agreement to continue the operation of the Illinois Center of Excellence for 
Behavioral Health and Justice. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago 
that the Chairman of the County Board of the County of Winnebago is authorized and directed 
to execute an Intergovernmental Agreement Between the County of Winnebago and the Board 
of Trustees of the University of Illinois on behalf of the University of Illinois College of Medicine 
Rockford continuing to operate the Illinois Center of Excellence for Behavioral Health and 
Justice, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby authorized to 
prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to Michelle Rock, Director, Illinois Center 
of Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice, 1601 Parkview, Rockford, Illinois and Walter K. 
Knorr, Comptroller, the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois. 

 
 
 



Respectfully submitted, 
 

      Public Safety Committee 
      
      _____________________________ 
      Dave Fiduccia, Chairman 
 

_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Aaron Booker      Dorothy Redd    
  
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
Dan Fellars      Fred Wescott 
 
_____________________________   
Eli Nicolosi       
 
 
 The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of __________________________, 2017. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A 

County of Winnebago IGA 
08-10-17 Final 
 1 

  
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 

AND 
WINNEBAGO COUNTY ON BEHALF OF THE ILLINOIS CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR 

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 
  

 
This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between The Board of Trustees 
of the University of Illinois, a public body, corporate and politic of the State of Illinois 
(“UNIVERSITY”), on behalf of the University of Illinois College of Medicine at Rockford (“COM-
R”), and County of Winnebago (“COUNTY”), for itself and on behalf of The Illinois Center of 
Excellence for Behavioral Health and Justice (”COE”) pursuant to the Intergovernmental 
Cooperation Act (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.). UNIVERSITY and COUNTY may also collectively be 
referred to herein at times as “the Parties” and individually as “a Party”. 
 

Recitals 
 
WHEREAS, this Agreement supersedes the previous Intergovernmental Agreement between 
UNIVERSITY and COUNTY on behalf of the COE which was entered on February 11, 2016. 
 
WHEREAS, COUNTY, the Illinois Department of Human Services, and the Illinois Criminal 
Justice Information Authority established COE for the purpose of compiling information about 
evidence-based practices and research, and providing technical assistance, resources, and 
training to improve systemic responses for persons with mental health and/or substance abuse 
disorders involved with the criminal justice system; and 
 
WHEREAS, COUNTY is acting as the fiscal and administrative agent for COE for purposes of 
this Agreement and certain other matters relating to COE operations; and 
  
WHEREAS, COM-R has been the home of a regional campus of University of Illinois College of 
Medicine, for the past 40 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, COM-R has identified regional community service as a core part of its mission as a 
state-supported institution of higher education; and 
 
WHEREAS, the public service, research, and teaching missions of the UNIVERSITY are 
aligned with the purposes and missions of COUNTY and COE; and 
 
WHEREAS, COM-R, COE and COUNTY have established a collaborative relationship that 
includes, among other things, joint efforts relating to the operation of COE, membership by 
COM-R on the COE Advisory Board; and  
 
WHEREAS, COE has established a reputation for providing quality training, technical 
assistance, and information on issues related to persons with behavioral health disorders who 
are involved with the criminal justice system throughout the State of Illinois; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire by this Agreement to further establish a mutually beneficial and 
collaborative relationship to explore and exploit synergies in the treatment of persons with 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

2 

mental health and/or substance use disorders, particularly in the area of improving such 
persons’ interactions with the criminal justice system; and 
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of their shared mission, COE wishes to locate its offices at COM-R 
and to utilize certain COM-R administrative and staffing resources for COE operations, and 
UNIVERSITY desires to house the COE offices on the COM-R campus, and to provide 
administrative and staffing resources to COE, all on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and agreements 
contained herein, including the above recitals, which shall be deemed a material part of this 
Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
Article 1. License of Office Space 

1.1 License Grant  
During the Term (as defined in Article 2 below), and subject to all terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, UNIVERSITY hereby grants to COUNTY a no cost license for COE to use Room 
N103 (145 sq ft. more or less) and Room N104 (142 sq ft. more or less) in the building located 
at 1601 Parkview Ave., Rockford, Illinois 61107 (the “Building”). 
 
1.2 Condition of Licensed Premises 
COUNTY has examined the Licensed Premises and is satisfied with the condition thereof.    No 
promise of the UNIVERSITY to alter, remodel, improve, and no representation respecting the 
condition of the Licensed Premises has been made by UNIVERSITY to COE or COUNTY, 
unless contained in this Agreement. Upon termination of this License by lapse of time or 
otherwise, COUNTY shall return the Licensed Premises and all UNIVERSITY equipment and 
fixtures therein in the same condition as on the date COUNTY took possession thereof, 
ordinary wear and tear excepted. 
 
1.3 Use of Common Areas  
COE will be listed on the Building directory and may use the common areas of the Building for 
ingress and egress to the Licensed Premises, and shall have access to and use of the 
restroom facilities in the Building. In addition, as needed and subject to availability, COE may 
use meeting rooms or other COM-R meeting space in the Building without additional expense. 
UNIVERSTY related activities will be given first priority for scheduling of meeting rooms. 
 
1.4 Rules and Regulations for Use of Building and Licensed Premises 
All rules and regulations which UNIVERSITY may, from time to time, reasonably adopt and 
promulgate for the governance and management of the Building and/or the Licensed 
Premises, and which are made known in writing to COE and COUNTY, are hereby made a 
part of this Agreement and shall be observed and performed by COE and COUNTY, their 
respective agents, employees and invitees, as if such rules and regulations were contained 
herein as covenants.     
 
1.5 Permitted Use  
The Licensed Premises shall be used exclusively by COE for the purpose of administering 
COE’s operations including COE’s client services, advisory board meetings, conference 
planning and execution, marketing and related general office use (“Permitted Use”).  COUNTY 
covenants and agrees that it will not make or allow any use of the Licensed Premises other 
than the Permitted Use.  UNIVERSITY professionals who may consult with COE under 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

3 

separate agreements to be entered into by the Parties shall be given reasonable access to the 
Licensed Premises to facilitate the performance of such services.  
 
COUNTY shall not use the Licensed Premises for any illegal purpose, or violate any statute, 
regulation, rule or order of any governmental body, having jurisdiction over COUNTY or 
UNIVERSITY, or create or allow to exist any nuisance or trespass, or do any act in or about the 
Licensed Premises, or bring anything onto or into the Licensed Premises or the Building which 
will in any way increase the rate of insurance on the Building, or deface or injure the Licensed 
Premises or the Building, or overload the floor of the License Premises. 
 
COUNTY shall comply, and shall cause COE to comply, with all applicable laws, statutes, 
ordinances and regulations of governmental bodies, authorities and agencies, relating to 
COE’s use and occupancy of the Licensed Premises. 
 
1.6 University’s Right to Substitute Space 
UNIVERSITY, at its option, shall have the right during the Term to substitute other and 
substantially equivalent space within the Building. UNIVERSITY shall give COUNTY not less 
than ninety (90) days prior notice before making a substitution of space.  The costs of 
installing COE’s office in such substituted space and incidental moving costs shall be borne 
by UNIVERSITY.  
 
1.7  Alterations and Furnishing of Licensed Premises by UNIVERSITY 
UNIVERSITY shall furnish the Licensed Premises with UNIVERSITY-standard office 
furniture and may make minor alterations to the Licensed Premises at its discretion which 
are essential to COUNTY’s operation.  Any changes to the physical structure of the 
Licensed Premises or the Building, including the walls, painting, and electrical/mechanical 
services must first be approved in writing by the UNIVERSITY before any work is 
undertaken by COUNTY. 
 
1.8 Damage or Theft of Personal Property 
COUNTY agrees that all personal property brought into the Licensed Premises shall be at 
the risk of the COUNTY only and that the UNIVERSITY shall not be liable for theft thereof or 
any damages thereto occasioned from any act of any person, except as may be caused by 
negligence of the UNIVERSITY. 

 
1.9 Telecommunications and Internet 
 1.9.1 COE will be granted internet connectivity in the Licensed Premises 
through the UNIVERSITY system for COE desktop and laptop computers used in the 
Licensed Premises, but will not utilize the UNIVERSITY website for its internet presence. All 
internet connectivity and usage by COE shall be in accordance with UNIVERSITY’S policies 
and terms of use.  If COE, or persons working for COE, violate any of UNIVERSITY’S 
internet connectivity and usage policies or any applicable law(s) or regulations(s), 
UNIVERSITY shall notify COE, and may take all measures necessary to rectify such 
violation(s), including without limitation, temporary or permanent denial of access to 
UNIVERSITY’S internet system. 
 

  1.9.2 COE will be granted use of UNIVERSITY telephone lines in the Licensed 
Premises for use by COE.  The number and location of the telephone lines that will be made 
available for use by COE shall be determined by UNIVERSITY. UNIVERSITY shall be under 
no obligation to add additional telephone lines or to change or upgrade the existing 
telephone service in the Licensed Premises to accommodate any telephone usage by COE.  



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

4 

In the event that telephone usage exceeds normal levels incidental to the day-to-day 
operations of COE, which shall include a reasonable number of out-of area calls, the 
UNIVERSITY shall promptly notify COUNTY and COE in writing and may assess a 
surcharge to recoup direct costs incurred for such additional usage. 

 
  1.9.3 UNIVERSITY makes no representation or warranty to COUNTY or COE 

concerning any of the internet and telecommunications services provided to COE and 
COUNTY, for itself and on behalf of COE, hereby waives any claim for loss or damage due 
to temporary suspension or loss of such services and also in respect to any loss or 
destruction of data stored or maintained by COUNTY or COE on the UNIVERSITY system. 

 
  1.9.4 In the event that UNIVERSITY exercises its option to provide COUNTY 

with substitute space under Section 1.6 above, UNIVERSITY shall provide telephone lines 
and internet connectivity for use by COE in such substituted space. 
 

Article 2. Duration of Agreement 
The initial term of this Agreement shall begin on July 1, 2017 (“Effective Date”) through 
September 30, 2018, and unless otherwise terminated as provided herein, this Agreement shall 
renew automatically for five (5) additional one-year terms that shall run from October 1st 
through September 30th (the initial term and each renewal term are referred to herein as the 
“Term”).    

 
Article 3. Termination of Agreement 
 

3.1      Termination for Convenience 
Either Party may terminate this Agreement for convenience, in its sole discretion, for any 
reason or no reason, upon one hundred twenty (120) days prior written notice to the other 
Party. In the event of termination for convenience by either Party, UNIVERSITY shall be 
paid for all services performed, and reimbursable costs incurred, under this Agreement up 
to the effective date of termination. 
 
3.2      Termination for Cause 

UNIVERSITY and COUNTY may terminate the Agreement for breach by the other Party if 
such breach is not cured within fifteen (15) days following service of a written notice of 
breach. 

 
Article 4. Compensation 

 
4.1 Rate of Compensation 

Services performed, and costs incurred by UNIVERSITY that are to be funded by 
COUNTY under this Agreement, will be paid by COUNTY on a cost reimbursement basis.  
 
4.2 Method of Payment 
COUNTY agrees to pay UNIVERSITY no less frequently than monthly for services 
rendered during the Term. 
   
4.3 Method of Billing 
UNIVERSITY will submit an appropriately itemized monthly invoice to COE for submission 
to COUNTY for all reimbursable expenses incurred. Payment shall be made within sixty 
(60) days of COUNTY’s receipt of UNIVERSITY’s invoice (“Due Date”).  Payment shall be 
sent to the address indicated on the invoice. 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

5 

 
4.4 Late Payments 
UNIVERSITY may assess COUNTY a finance charge equal to the amount chargeable 
under the Illinois Prompt Payment Act on the unpaid balance of any invoice that is not paid 
within thirty (30) days of the Due Date. 
 

Article 5. Administration and Notification 
The Agreement Representatives named below shall be each Party’s authorized representative 
in all matters pertaining to procedures or the administration of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. All matters of interpretation and/or approval shall be directed to the Party’s 
Agreement Representative who will be the primary point of contact and coordinate any 
necessary response. 
 
All communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be sent by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested, or by an overnight courier service to the persons listed below. A 
notice shall be deemed to have been given when received at the specified notification address. 
Include the Agreement Number in any notifications. 
 
 
UNIVERSITY Representative  COUNTY Representative  
Uma Sriram 
Director of Finance and Accounting 
UIC College of Medicine Rockford 
1601 Parkview Avenue 
Rockford, IL  61107 
Tel: 815-395-5637 
Fax: 815-395-5903 
Email: usriram@uillinois.edu 
 
 

Amanda Hamaker 
County Administrator 
County of Winnebago 
404 Elm Street 
Rockford, Illinois  61101 
Tel:  815-319-4243 
Email:  ahamaker@wincoil.us 
 
 

With a copy to:      COE Representative 
University of Illinois     Michelle Rock, Executive Director 
Capital Programs and Real Estate   Illinois Center of Excellence for  
Attn:  Bruce Walden     Behavioral Health and Justice 
506 Wright Street     1601 Parkview Ave., Rm. N103 
Urbana, IL  61801     Rockford, Illinois  61107   
       Tel:  815-395-2140    
       Email:  mrock@ilcoe.us 
 
 
Article 6. Independent Contractor 
COUNTY and UNIVERSITY are independent contractors with respect to each other and nothing 
herein shall create any association, partnership, joint venture or agency relationship between 
them. 
 
Article 7. Discrepancies and Omissions 
If there are any discrepancies and/or omissions regarding the scope of services to be provided, 
the UNIVERSITY and COUNTY shall obtain written clarification from the other Party before 
proceeding with the work affected by such discrepancies.  
 

mailto:usriram@uillinois.edu
mailto:ahamaker@wincoil.us
mailto:mrock@ilcoe.us


 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

6 

Article 8. Disclaimer; Limitation of Liability 
UNIVERSITY MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, 
REGARDING ITS PERFORMANCE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO ANY WARRANTY OF THE MERCHANTABILITY, USE OR FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OF ANY SERVICES, GOODS, OR FACILITIES PROVIDED TO 
COUNTY UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.  In no event shall UNIVERSITY be liable to COUNTY 
for any indirect, special, exemplary, consequential, or incidental damages or lost profits arising 
out of, or related to, this Agreement, even if it has been advised of the possibility of such 
damages.  UNIVERSITY’s liability for direct damages for services shall in no event exceed the 
amount actually paid by the COUNTY for the portion of the services involved. 
 
Article 9. Insurance  
9.1 COUNTY Insurance 

 
COUNTY shall maintain a policy or policies of insurance, or a program and plan of self-
insurance, with the following coverage during the Term:  
 
Coverage                                Minimum Limits of Liability 
a.   Worker’s Compensation & Occupational Diseases   Statutory Limits 
b.   Employers’ Liability                                      $500,000 (Coverage B-6) 
c.   Commercial General Liability Insurance: 

 Bodily Injury (including personal injury), 
 contractual liability; and premises liability $1,000,000 each occurrence  

 $2,000,000 annual aggregate  
 Property Damage Liability                      $1,000,000 each occurrence 
 $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Upon request, COUNTY agrees to furnish UNIVERSITY with a copy of its self-insurance 
plan and/or copies of certificate(s) of insurance.  Nothing contained herein shall be 
construed as limiting, in any way, any agreement by the COUNTY to hold the 
UNIVERSITY harmless.  No waiver of subrogation terms are included in the terms of this 
Agreement. COUNTY represents and warrants to UNIVERSITY that the insurance 
coverage provided by COUNTY pursuant to this Article 10.1 shall be applicable to the 
activities of COE, and any COUNTY employees who may perform services for COE, in 
respect to this Agreement. 
 
COUNTY shall keep said insurance in full force until termination of this Agreement.  Such 
insurance shall be modifiable or cancelable only on written notice from such insurance 
companies, or the administrator of COUNTY’s self-insurance plan, delivered to the 
UNIVERSITY not less than thirty (30) days in advance of cancellation or proposed 
policy/plan changes and/or modifications. 
 
9.2 Other Insurance 
At its option, COUNTY shall secure, pay for and maintain whatever Fire or Extended 
Coverage Insurance it may deem necessary to protect itself and COE against loss of any 
materials or equipment owned or rented by it, and its employees, customers, guests, and 
agents.  COUNTY hereby agrees that all risk of loss to COUNTY or COUNTY’s  employees’, 
and COUNTY or COE’s customers’, guests’, clients’ or agents’ property located on, in or 
about the Licensed Premises, including but not limited to loss from fire, explosion, malicious 
damage to property, flood, or other natural calamity, shall be borne by  COUNTY.  
 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

7 

9.3 University Insurance 
 
By action of the Board of Trustees of the University of Illinois on August 1, 1976 a liability self-
insurance Program and Plan were established, and most recently amended on June 9, 2011, 
for its employees, agents and servants. The Program and Plan documents are available on 
request. While the Program and Plan are in effect as to the date hereof, nothing contained 
herein shall be construed as precluding said Board of Trustees from modifying, revising, or 
canceling, in whole or part, the Program or the Plan; provided however, UNIVERSITY agrees 
to provide COUNTY with an advance 30-day public notice in the event that the Program or 
Plan is canceled in whole or in part. 
 

Article 10. Force Majeure 
Neither Party hereto shall be liable in damages for any delay or default in performing its 
respective obligations under this Agreement if such delay or default is caused by conditions 
beyond its control. Such conditions include but are not limited to, acts of God, government 
restrictions, strikes, fires, floods, or work stoppages, or acts or failures to act of third parties. So 
long as any such delay or default continues, the Party affected by the conditions beyond its 
control shall keep the other Party at all times fully informed concerning the matters causing the 
delay or default and the prospects of their ending. 
 
Article 11. Use of Name 
Neither Party shall use the name of the other Party for any advertising or marketing purpose 
without the prior written approval of the other Party.    
 
Article 12.  Non-Discrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity  
Both Parties certify that they are in compliance with applicable provisions of the U.S. Civil Rights 
Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules 
applicable to each. Both Parties shall comply with Executive Order 11246, entitled “Equal 
Employment Opportunity”, as amended by Executive Order 11375, and as supplemented by 
U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter 60).  

 
Article 13. Headings 
The headings of the articles contained in this Agreement are for reference purposes only and 
shall not affect in any way the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 
 
Article 14. Assignment 
This Agreement may not be assigned, in whole or in part, by either Party without the prior 
written approval of the other Party. 
 
Article 15. Amendments 
This Agreement shall not be amended, modified, altered or changed except by mutual 
agreement confirmed in writing and duly executed by UNIVERSITY and COUNTY.  
 
Article 16. Compliance with Laws 
Both Parties agree to comply with all applicable laws, statutes, regulations, rulings, or 
enactments of any governmental authority, including, but not limited to, the Anti-Kickback 
Statute (42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b)) and its regulations, and the Ethics in Patient Referrals 
Act (42 U.S.C. Section 1395nn) and its regulations (collectively, the “Laws”).  If either Party 
believes in good faith that any provision of this Agreement shall cause a violation of any of the 
Laws, the Parties shall work in good faith to amend this Agreement to conform to the Laws.  If 
the Parties are unable to agree on any such amendment, or if it is not possible to amend the 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

8 

Agreement to comply with the Laws, then this Agreement shall immediately terminate.  Neither 
Party to this Agreement, nor any of its affiliates, employees or agents, makes or is required to 
make any referrals of patients or clients to the other. 

Article 17. Governing Law, Jurisdiction and Venue 
This Agreement is to be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Illinois.  Jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any disputes relating to or arising out of this 
Agreement shall lie exclusively in the Illinois Court of Claims.  
 
Article 18. Waiver 
The failure of either Party hereto at any time or times to enforce any provision of this Agreement 
shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of such provisions or to affect the validity of this 
Agreement or any part hereof, or the right of either Party thereafter to enforce each and every 
provision in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  
 
Article 19. Entire Agreement 
This Agreement, attachments, amendments/addenda and incorporated references shall 
constitute the entire Agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter herein 
and supersedes all prior communications and writings with respect to the content of said 
Agreement. 
 
 
 APPROVAL AND EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Agreement shall not be binding until signed by all Parties. The persons signing this 
Agreement represent and warrant that all articles including certifications are true and correct 
and that they have authority to bind their respective Parties. 



 

County of Winnebago IGA  
08-10-17 Final 
   

9 

 
THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
UNIVERSITY OF ILLINOIS 

COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO FOR ITSELF 
AND ON BEHALF OF THE ILLINOIS 
CENTER OF EXCELLENCE FOR 
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND JUSTICE 

 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 Walter K. Knorr, Comptroller 
             
 
Date: _____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
By:_________________________________ 
     Frank Haney, Chairman 
 
 
Date: ______________________________ 
 
 
Attest: 
 
____________________________________ 
Margie M. Mullins 
Clerk of the County Board  
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
Date:  _______________________________ 
 

  
 
 


	Amended Agenda
	Revised Agenda
	CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
	CONSENT AGENDA
	FINANCE COMMITTEE
	ZONING COMMITTEE
	ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
	OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE
	PUBLIC  WORKS COMMITTEE



